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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Ben Venue, the Fletcher family homestead, is scenically situated on a rolling tract
of land off route 729 in Rappahannock County. The house and its collection of outbuild-

ings constitute a well-preserved example of a mid-19th~century faru complex in Virginia's
Central Piedmont. | |

Set on a.fieldstone foundation, the front (west) elevation is laid in Flemish bond
painted red. The facade is dominated by a one-story porch that covers the central three
bays. The porch comsists of four Doric columns supporting a bracketed entablature. A
cast-iron railing with a lyre motif is found oun the first story and roof deck. Two
slender pilasters, indicative of an earlier porch, flank the main entrance. The west
entrance consists of a four-light transom and sidelights surrounding the original
paneled door. The front steps are a mid-20th-century replacement, Fenestration consists
of original 9/9 hung-sash windows on the first floor and 6/9 on the second. The windows
are framed by architraves and flanked by louvred shutters. A corbeled brick cornice
embellishes the eaves course. Two chimneys project between the inside and the end bays.

The ends of the house, also laid in Flemish bond, have two windows on each floor
with a lunette in the gable. The gables are treated with sloping parapets and corbeled
shoulders. The rear wall of the house is laid in gseven-course American bond and is
dominated by a two-level wooden gallery with plain square pests and plain railings.
Extending from the northern end of the rear is an original two-story ell with gable
and cornices similar tc those on the main part. On the south side of the ell is a plain
one-story porch that comnnects to the gallery noted above. The windows on the side and
rear walls as well as on the ell are treated similarly to those on the facade. Two
chimmeys on the rear correspond to those on the facade, and the ell has an interior
end chimney. ‘ '

Ben Venue has a central hall plan. Dominating the hall is an open-well stair with
a turned newel post, a rounded handrail and two rectangular balusters per tread.
Paralleling the stair is knotty pine paneling added in 1953. The doorways in the hall
have symmetrical architrave trim with molded corner blocks. The knotly pine paneling
is repeated on the remairiing walls and is also found in the north parlor.

Other than the kmotty pine paneling which runs from floor to ceiling, the north
parlor retains its original architectural features. The room contains a simply executed
Greek Revival mantel and plain architraves above the windows. The south parlor contains
a carved Federal mantel that was removed from the older Fletcher house which is still
standing on the property. The original Greek Revival mantel, similar to that found in
the north parlor, is stored in the basement of the kitchen. The windows are framed by
gimple architraves ornamented =i the upper corners by Greek frets. The original paneled
doors are retained throughout the house.

The dining room also contains a simple Greek Revival mantel with symmetrical
architrave trim and finely molded corner blocks. A molded chair rail and baseboard run
the room's perimeter.

The second-floor plan corresponded to that below, However, during the present

century the south chamber was divided into two rooms, and the north chamber was parti-
tioned for bath and closet space. The rooms' simple Greek Revival mantels remain,

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The early 19th-century prosperity of Rappehannock County is symbolized by the large
farmhouse and groupings of outbulldlngs that formed the nuclei of often vast landholdings.
The wearing out of the lands in Tidewater in the 18th century mwade the fertile, rolling
hills of Pledmont ideal for resettlement; thus were egtablished many fine farms with archi-
tecturaliydistinctive dwellings and outbulldlngs Ben Venue is a conspicuous example of the
more progerous seats. Its focal point is a large briek house distinguished by parapet gables
with corbeled shoulders and chimneys oddly placed on the facade rather than on the ends of
the house, The parapet gables and corbeled shoulders are repeated on the several outbuild-
ings which include three exceptionally interesting slave houses aligned on a ridge across
the road from the main house. Slave houses are rare surivals in Virginia, few having
withstood the burden of time. Those at Ben Venue are unusually solid and have the rarity
of architectural elaboration. The Ben Venue complex is attributed to James Leake Powers,
a loeal builder, who is credited with a number of buildings in the county. The house was
constructed between 1844 and 1846 for William V. Fletcher, a prominent landowner, and has
remained in the possession of his descendants.

William Fletcher first appears in the Culpeper County deed books in 1830 when he
purchased ten acres of land near the courthouse. Thereafter, Fletcher's name appears
regularly in the Rappahannock land bocks, taxed in 1840 for 1,55¢% acres with improvements
valued at $2,800. In 1846 the building value was listed as $5,912 dating the compleiion.
of Ben Venue, :

William T. Stevens in his book, Virginia House Tour states, "Commissioned to build the
residence (Ben Venue) and three brick slave cabins was my collateral ancestor, James Leake
Powers, a native son of Albemarle County who had worked under Mr. Jefferson on the
University of Virginia along with Dinsmore and Neilson..."t Although there are not, as yei, |-
any known documents to prove that he was a worlman at the University or that he was the 4
builder of Ben Venue, the cellar chambers at the Fletcher house are an unusual feature and
have been derived from similar-examples found at Monticelle. In any cace, Powers was a
property holder in the town of Washington. In 1837 he purchased for $1,500 "a ceriain
house and lot in the town of Washington Imown on the plat of said town as No. 21."¢ Local
tradition credits Powers with building the county courthouse, the jail, and the Presbyteriang
church, along with several residences including Jessamin Hill, a house with chimneys similar§
to those on Ben Venue. :

The buildings at Ben Venue present a picture of rural Virginia farm life in a period
of agricultural revival. The layout of the farm is a traditional one not unlike the large
plantation complexes that dominated the state's landscape throughout the 18th century.

The grouping is complemented by a formal boxwood garden that provides a dramatic contrast
to the fields that surround the property. The garden was originally plammed and laid out
in the 19th century.

VDS/RCC
{See Continuation Sheet #2)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
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1500*" to point of origin.
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6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
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7. DESCRIPTION

Ben Venue contains a distinguished collection of cutbuildings. The original
Fletcher homestead is a li-story wood-frame "saltbox"-roof building. Covered by weather-
boarding, the structure contains two stone exterior end chimneys. The multi-paned transom
doorway 1s complemented by 6/6 hung-sash windows. As noted above, one of its mantels was
removed and reinstalled in the main house during the present century.

The kitchen 1s a 2i-story brick building located southeast of the house and ig executed}
in seven-course American bond. Covered by a standing-geam metal roof, the structure sits ]
on a fieldstone basement. Fenestration consists of 6/9 hung-sash windows on the first
story and 6/6 hung-sash windows on the second story. A four-pane casement light is found
in the attic. A semi-exterior brick chimney Is found on the east elevation. The first
story contains its original large cooking fireplace fronted by a plain mantel. An
enclosed stair leads to the second story. The basement constitutes part of a fieldstone
cellar gystem that extends eastward from the main house. Openings are found under the
rear steps, beneath the brick- and stone-paved terrace, and under the kitchen on the north

-and south elevations. The roof is treated with corbeled brick cornices and parapet gables
similar to those on the main house.

The 1#-story brick smokehouse is covered by a standing-seam sheet metal roof and a
corbeled brick cornice and parapet gables. A one-story shed, constructed of concrete
blocks, was attached to the west wall in the present century.

The privy is a one-story brick building south of the kitchen and is also executed in
seven-course American-bond brick. The structure is covered by a standing-seam sheet metal
roof. Frame farm buildings include a board-and-batten chicken house, two plank-and-log
granaries and a hoard-and-batten and log garage with an exterior stone and brick chimney.

A formal garden is located t¢ the north of the complex and is composed of rows of box-
wood., A boxwood walk is found in the front of the main house and boxwood is ygedaround the
privy and smckehouse. An overseer's house was Tormerly located at the northern end of the
garden but burned in the present century.

(See Continuation Sheet #2)
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7. DESCRIPTION

Aeross the road and northwest of the main complex stands a row of three small slave
cabing, The buildings have exterior end chimneys and are laid in seven-course American-
bond brick set on fieldstone foundations. The buildings are also treated with corbeled
brick cornices, parapet gables and corbeled shoulders. The interiors contaln unbarked log
rafters and log joists. An original ladder stair survives in one building.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The nominated property consists of approximately 73 acres. In 1844, the year Ben
Venue was built, William ¥Fletcher owned 1,556% acres. The nominated acreage ineludes
the main house, all outbuildings, the family cemetery, and the slave cabins across the
road. Most of the nominated property is used for agriculture. The boundaries follow
pre-existing contours and fence lines. The land is still owned by Fletcher descendants.

RCC
8. SIGNIFICANCE

1Wi11iam T. Stevens, Virginia House Tour {Charlottesville: William T. Stevens,
1962), p. 349.

2Rappahannock County Deed Book C, p. 111.
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